
UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF WISCONSIN 

MILWAUKEE DIVISION 
 

SHARON MEYER, Individually and on Behalf of 
All Others Similarly Situated, 
 
  Plaintiffs, 
 v. 
 
MIDLAND CREDIT MANAGEMENT, INC.,  
and MIDLAND FUNDING, LLC, 
 
  Defendants. 

)
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
)

Case No.: 17-cv-1466 
 
AMENDED CLASS ACTION 
COMPLAINT  
 
 
 
Jury Trial Demanded 

 
INTRODUCTION 

1. Plaintiff brings this action to secure redress for a course of conduct that included, 

among other things, the accessing of a consumer report on Plaintiff without Plaintiff’s consent or 

for any lawful reason, in violation of the Fair Credit Reporting Act, 15 U.S.C. §§ 1681 et seq. 

(“FCRA”). This class action also seeks redress for collection practices that violate the Fair Debt 

Collection Practices Act, 15 U.S.C. § 1692 et seq. (the “FDCPA”) and the Wisconsin Consumer 

Act, chapter 427, Wisconsin Statutes (the “WCA”). 

JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

2. The court has jurisdiction to grant the relief sought by the Plaintiff pursuant to 15 

U.S.C. §§ 1681n, 1692k and 28 U.S.C. §§ 1331, 1337 and 1367. Venue in this District is proper 

in that Defendants directed their collection efforts into the District. 

PARTIES 

3. Plaintiff Sharon Meyer (“Meyer”) is an individual who resides in the Eastern 

District of Wisconsin (Milwaukee County). 

4. Meyer is a “consumer” as defined in the FDCPA, 15 U.S.C. § 1692a(3), in that 

Defendants sought to collect from her a debt allegedly incurred for personal, family or household 

purposes. 
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5. Meyer is also a “consumer” as defined in the FCRA, 15 U.S.C. § 1681a(c) (“The 

term ‘consumer’ means an individual.”) 

6. Meyer is also a “customer” as defined in the Wisconsin Consumer Act, Wis. Stat. 

§ 421.301(17), in that she engaged in a consumer credit transaction. 
 

7. Defendant Midland Credit Management, Inc. (“MCM”) is a foreign corporation 

with its principal place of business located at 3111 Camino Del Rio North,  

Suite 103, San Diego, CA 92108. 

8. MCM is engaged in the business of a collection agency, using the mails and 

telephone to collect consumer debts originally owed to others. 

9. MCM is a “person” as defined in the FCRA, 15 U.S.C. § 1681a(b) (“The term 

‘person’ means any individual, partnership, corporation, trust, estate, cooperative, association, 

government or governmental subdivision or agency, or other entity.”).  

10. MCM is engaged in the business of collecting debts owed to others and incurred 

for personal, family or household purposes. Midland is a debt collector as defined in 15 U.S.C. § 

1692a and Wis. Stat. § 427.103(3). 

11. Defendant Midland Funding, LLC (“Midland Funding”) is a limited liability 

company with its principal place of business located at 3111 Camino Del Rio North, Suite 103, 

San Diego, CA 92108. 

12. Midland Funding is engaged in the business of a collection agency under 

Wisconsin law, in that it purchases and receives assignment of consumer debts that are in default 

at the time Midland Funding acquires them. 

13. Wis. Stat. § 427.103(3) defines debt collector as: “any person engaging, directly 

or indirectly, in debt collection, and includes any person who sells, or offers to sell, forms 
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represented to be a collection system, device or scheme, intended or calculated to be used to 

collect claims. The term does not include a printing company engaging in the printing and sale of 

forms.” (emphasis added). On its face, Wis. Stat. § 427.103(3) applies to creditors collecting on 

their own behalf. 

14. Wis. Stat § 427.103(2) states: “Debt collection” means any action, conduct or 

practice of soliciting claims for collection or in the collection of claims owed or due or alleged to 

be owed or due a merchant by a customer.” 

15. Midland Funding is a “merchant” as defined in the WCA, as it has, or claims to 

have, taken assignment of Plaintiff’s former “Synchrony Bank” (“Synchrony”) consumer credit 

card account. Wis. Stat. § 421.301(25) (“The term [merchant] includes but is not limited to a 

seller, lessor, manufacturer, creditor, arranger of credit and any assignee of or successor to such 

person.”) 

16. The Western District of Wisconsin has noted: “Unlike the FDCPA, the Wisconsin 

Consumer Act does not provide exceptions to its general definition of a debt collector.” Hartman 

v. Meridian Fin. Servs., 191 F. Supp. 2d 1031, 1048 (W.D. Wis. 2002). 

17. The Wisconsin Department of Financial Institutions has likewise designated 

merchants and creditors as “Debt Collectors” under the WCA: 
 

Anyone attempting to collect a debt arising from a consumer credit transaction in 
Wisconsin, whether a merchant doing its own debt collecting or a third-party debt 
collector, must follow Wisconsin’s debt collection law, Ch. 427, Wis. Stats. This is an 
important point because many merchants collecting debt owed directly to them 
mistakenly believe that they are exempt from Wisconsin’s debt collection law because 
they are not included within the definition of “debt collector” under the federal Fair Debt 
Collection Practices Act. 

 
https://www.wdfi.org/wca/business_guidance/creditors/debt_collection/ 
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18. Midland Funding uses third party debt collectors, including MCM, to collect 

allegedly defaulted debts that have been assigned to Midland. 

19. A company meeting the definition of a “debt collector” (here, Midland Funding) 

is vicariously liable for the actions of a second company collecting debts on its behalf. Janetos v. 

Fulton Friedman & Gullace, LLP, 825 F.3d 317, 325-26 (7th Cir. 2016) (assignees who are 

“debt collectors” are responsible for the actions of those collecting on their behalf); citing 

Pollice, 225 F.3d at 404-05. 

20. Hereinafter, and unless a particular defendant is specified, MCM and Midland 

Funding are collectively referred to as “Midland.” 

FACTS 

21. Meyer had an alleged BP (i.e. British Petroleum) branded personal credit card 

account, originally owed to Synchrony. The account went into default after Meyer fell behind on 

payments. 

22. On or about April 30, 2017, Synchrony sent Meyer a letter notifying Meyer that 

Synchrony had sold Meyer’s account to MCM. A copy of this letter is attached to this complaint 

as Exhibit A. 

23. On or about May 27, 2016, MCM mailed a debt collection letter to Meyer 

regarding an alleged debt, allegedly owed to Midland Funding and originally owed to 

Synchrony. A copy of this letter is attached to this complaint as Exhibit B. 

24. The alleged debt identified in Exhibit B is the Plaintiff’s alleged BP branded 

personal credit card account, originally owed to Synchrony. See 

https://www.mybpstation.com/cards. 
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25. Upon information and belief, Exhibit B is a form letter, generated by computer, 

and with the information specific to Meyer inserted by computer. 

26. Upon information and belief, Exhibit B is a form debt collection letter used by 

MCM to attempt to collect alleged debts. 

27. Meyer used this credit card only for personal, family or household purposes, 

namely, purchases of household goods and services, including purchasing gasoline and personal 

items at BP gas stations. Meyer did not open or use the credit card account for any business 

purpose. 

28. The credit card account identified in Exhibit B was in default, closed, and upon 

information and belief, charged off by Synchrony, before Synchrony sent Exhibit A to Meyer. 

29. Exhibit B states the following:  

 

30. Exhibit B also states: 

 

31. Meyer did not make a payment to MCM at any time. 

32. Meyer did not set up a payment plan with MCM at any time. 

33. Upon information and belief, Midland reported Meyer’s alleged debt to the three 

major credit reporting agencies (“CRAs”) sometime around August 27, 2016. 

34. MCM sent another letter to Meyer on or around October 24, 2016. A copy of this 

letter is attached to this complaint as Exhibit C. 

35. Plaintiff received Exhibit C on or after October 26, 2016. 
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36. Exhibit C states the following: 

 

37. Upon information and belief, Exhibit C falsely and misleadingly states that 

Meyer’s Synchrony account was transferred to Midland Funding. The unsophisticated consumer 

would not know what that statement means. 

38. An account can generally be “transferred” from a creditor like Synchrony to a 

debt collector in several different ways. The creditor can transfer an account for collection while 

retaining full ownership of the account. The creditor can also transfer “servicing rights” to a debt 

collection agency while also retaining ownership. Under the typical servicing arrangement, the 

debt collector takes over regular billing, in addition to collecting past due amounts. The creditor 

can also sell the debt outright.  

39. Exhibit C is facially unclear about what actually happened to Meyer’s account 

between April and August 2016. 

40. Although the unsophisticated consumer is not expected to know this, MCM and 

Midland Funding are part of one of the largest debt buyer and debt collection outfits in the 

industry, with consumer debt portfolios in the hundreds of millions of dollars. The 2013 10-K 

filing for MCM and Midland Funding’s parent company, Encore Capital Group (“Encore”), 
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states that Encore has “one of the industry’s largest financially distressed consumer databases.” 

(Form 10-K, 12/31/13, p. 2). 

41. According to Encore’s 2013 Form 10-K, Encore spent more than $525 million to 

purchase consumer credit card accounts in the U.S. As Midland paid less than 10 cents on the 

dollar, the face value of those accounts is in the tens of billions of dollars. Encore purchased 

similar amounts of U.S. consumer credit card accounts in 2012 and 2011. 

42. Upon information and belief, neither MCM nor Midland Funding service debts on 

behalf of other entities that are not Encore’s corporate affiliates. Thus, once an account is sold to 

Midland Funding, the creditor retains no further interest in the debt. 

43. Synchrony cannot simply “recall” a debt from Midland unless Synchrony never 

transferred ownership rights to the debt to Midland Funding in the first place. 

44. Upon information and belief, Midland never actually took assignment of Meyer’s 

BP card from Synchrony. 

45. Upon information and belief, despite not actually taking ownership of Meyer’s 

Synchrony account from Synchrony, Midland reported Meyer’s accounts to the three major 

CRAs. 

46. Upon information and belief, Midland, as a regular business practice, obtains 

consumer reports from one or more of the three primary CRAs for all or virtually all of its 

accounts. 

47. Midland regularly pursues collection through litigation. For example, Midland 

filed over 100 collection lawsuits in Milwaukee County in September 2017 alone. 

48. Upon information and belief, Midland uses consumers’ consumer reports to 

determine whether to sue the consumer or whether she is uncollectible.  

Case 2:17-cv-01466   Filed 10/25/17   Page 7 of 16   Document 1



 
 
8 

49. Upon information and belief, Midland obtained consumer reports from one or 

more of the three primary CRAs (TransUnion, Equifax, and Experian) on or around August 27, 

2016, for the purpose of determining whether and to what extent Meyer is collectible. 

FCRA Violations 

50. The FCRA, 15 U.S.C. § 1681b, provides it is permissible to obtain a consumer 

report on a consumer only with the written consent of the consumer or for certain “permissible 

purposes,” such as the extension of credit to, or review or collection of an account of, the 

consumer, employment purposes, the underwriting of insurance, or in connection with a business 

transaction that is initiated by the consumer. 

51. The requester must certify to the consumer reporting agency that a permissible 

purpose exists. 

52. One “permissible purpose” is debt collection. 15 U.S.C. § 1681b(a)(3)(A). 

53. Midland, however, never actually took assignment of Meyer’s account. 

54. Midland had no legal basis collect the account from Meyer, and had no ownership 

interest in the debt. As such, Midland could not sue Meyer to collect the debt. 

55. Since, upon information and belief, Midland never took assignment of Meyer’s 

Synchrony account, it had no permissible purpose to access Meyer’s consumer reports. 

56. The sending of the material in Exhibit B does not constitute a permissible reason 

for anyone to access a consumer report on plaintiffs without plaintiffs’ consent. 

FDCPA and WCA Violations 
 

57. Exhibits A-C are false, misleading, and confusing to the unsophisticated 

consumer. 

58. Midland never actually took assignment of Meyer’s account. 
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59. Midland had no legal basis collect the account from Meyer, and had no ownership 

interest in the debt. As such, Midland could not sue Meyer to collect the debt. 

60. Since, upon information and belief, Midland never took assignment of Meyer’s 

Synchrony account, its representations that to that effect were false and misleading. 

61. Moreover, Midland’s ambiguous references to the status of the account and 

“recall” are confusing and misleading to the unsophisticated consumer. 

62. Meyer was confused by Exhibits A-C. 

63. Meyer had to spend time and money investigating Exhibits A-C, and the 

consequences of any potential responses to Exhibits A-C. 

64. Meyer had to take time to obtain and meet with counsel, including traveling to 

counsel’s office by car and its related expenses, including but not limited to the cost of gasoline 

and mileage, to advise Meyer on the consequences of Exhibits A-C. 

65. The FDCPA creates substantive rights for consumers; violations cause injury to 

consumers, and such injuries are concrete and particularized. Bock v. Pressler & Pressler, LLP, 

No. 11-7593, 2017 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 81058 *21 (D.N.J. May 25, 2017) (“through [s]ection 

1692e of the FDCPA, Congress established ‘an enforceable right to truthful information 

concerning’ debt collection practices, a decision that ‘was undoubtedly influenced by 

congressional awareness that the intentional provision of misinformation’ related to such 

practices, ‘contribute[s] to the number of personal bankruptcies, to marital instability, to the loss 

of jobs, and to invasions of individual privacy,”); Quinn v. Specialized Loan Servicing, LLC, No. 

16 C 2021, 2016 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 107299 *8-13 (N.D. Ill. Aug. 11, 2016) (rejecting challenge 

to Plaintiff’s standing based upon alleged FDCPA statutory violation); Lane v. Bayview Loan 

Servicing, LLC, No. 15 C 10446, 2016 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 89258 *9-10 (N.D. Ill. July 11, 2016) 
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(“When a federal statute is violated, and especially when Congress has created a cause of action 

for its violation, by definition Congress has created a legally protected interest that it deems 

important enough for a lawsuit.”); Church v. Accretive Health, Inc., No. 15-15708, 2016 U.S. 

App. LEXIS 12414 *7-11 (11th Cir. July 6, 2016) (same); see also Mogg v. Jacobs, No. 15-CV-

1142-JPG-DGW, 2016 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 33229, 2016 WL 1029396, at *5 (S.D. Ill. Mar. 15, 

2016) (“Congress does have the power to enact statutes creating legal rights, the invasion of 

which creates standing, even though no injury would exist without the statute,” (quoting Sterk v. 

Redbox Automated Retail, LLC, 770 F.3d 618, 623 (7th Cir. 2014)). For this reason, and to 

encourage consumers to bring FDCPA actions, Congress authorized an award of statutory 

damages for violations. 15 U.S.C. § 1692k(a). 

66. Moreover, Congress has explicitly described the FDCPA as regulating “abusive 

practices” in debt collection. 15 U.S.C. §§ 1692(a) – 1692(e). Any person who receives a debt 

collection letter containing a violation of the FDCPA is a victim of abusive practices. See 15 

U.S.C. §§ 1692(e) (“It is the purpose of this subchapter to eliminate abusive debt collection 

practices by debt collectors, to insure that those debt collectors who refrain from using abusive 

debt collection practices are not competitively disadvantaged, and to promote consistent State 

action to protect consumers against debt collection abuses”). 

67. The Wisconsin Consumer Act (“WCA”) was enacted to protect consumers against 

unfair, deceptive, and unconscionable business practices and to encourage development of fair 

and economically sound practices in consumer transactions. Wis. Stat. § 421.102(2). 

68. The Wisconsin Supreme Court has favorably cited authority finding that the 

WCA “goes further to protect consumer interests than any other such legislation in the country,” 

and is “probably the most sweeping consumer credit legislation yet enacted in any state.” Kett v. 
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Community Credit Plan, Inc., 228 Wis. 2d 1, 18 n.15, 596 N.W.2d 786 (1999) (citations 

omitted). 

69. To further these goals, the Act’s protections must be “liberally construed and 

applied.” Wis. Stat. § 421.102(1); see also § 425.301.   

70. “The basic purpose of the remedies set forth in Chapter 425, Stats., is to induce 

compliance with the WCA and thereby promote its underlying objectives.”  First Wisconsin 

Nat’l Bank v. Nicolaou, 113 Wis. 2d 524, 533, 335 N.W.2d 390 (1983).  Thus, private actions 

under the WCA are designed to both benefit consumers whose rights have been violated and also 

competitors of the violators, whose competitive advantage should not be diminished because of 

their compliance with the law. 

71. To carry out this intent, the WCA provides Wisconsin consumers with an array of 

protections and legal remedies. The Act contains significant and sweeping restrictions on the 

activities of those attempting to collect debts. See Wis. Stats. § 427.104.   

72. The Act limits the amounts and types of additional fees that may be charged to 

consumers in conjunction with transactions. Wis. Stats. § 422.202(1). The Act also provides 

injured consumers with causes of action for class-wide statutory and actual damages and 

injunctive remedies against defendants on behalf of all customers who suffer similar injuries. See 

Wis. Stats. §§ 426.110(1); § 426.110(4)(e). Finally, “a customer may not waive or agree to 

forego rights or benefits under [the Act].”  Wis. Stat. § 421.106(1). 

73. Consumers’ WCA claims under Wis. Stat. § 427.104(1) are analyzed using the 

same methods as claims under the FDCPA. While the Seventh Circuit has not squarely 

interpreted how WCA cases based upon the content of debt collection letters should be 

determined, federal courts in this District and the state courts in Wisconsin generally look to 
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FDCPA case law for guidance. Indeed, the WCA itself requires that the court analyze the WCA 

“in accordance with the policies underlying a federal consumer credit protection act,” including 

the FDCPA. Wis. Stat. § 421.102(1).  

74. Further, the Wisconsin Supreme Court has held that WCA claims relating to debt 

collection are to be analyzed under the “unsophisticated consumer” standard. Brunton v. Nuvell 

Credit Corp., 785 N.W.2d 302, 314-15. In Brunton, the Wisconsin Supreme Court explicitly 

adopted and followed the “unsophisticated consumer” standard, citing and discussing Gammon 

v. GC Servs. Ltd. P’ship, 27 F.3d 1254, 1257 (7th Cir. 1994). Id. 

75. 15 U.S.C. § 1692e generally prohibits “any false, deceptive, or misleading 

representation or means in connection with the collection of any debt.” 

76. 15 U.S.C. § 1692e(10) specifically prohibits the “use of any false representation 

or deceptive means to collect or attempt to collect any debt. 

77. 15 U.S.C. § 1692f generally prohibits “unfair or unconscionable means to collect 

or attempt to collect any debt.” 

78. 15 U.S.C. § 1692f(1) specifically prohibits the “collection of any amount 

(including any interest, fee, charge, or expense incidental to the principal obligation) unless such 

amount is expressly authorized by the agreement creating the debt or permitted by law.” 

79. Chapter 427, Wis. Stats., governs debt collection activities in Wisconsin. 

80. Wis. Stat. § 427.104(c) states that a debt collector may not: "Disclose or threaten 

to disclose information adversely affecting the customer's reputation for credit worthiness with 

knowledge or reason to know that the information is false." 

81. Wis. Stat. § 427.104(1)(j) states that a debt collector may not: “Claim, or attempt 

or threaten to enforce a right with knowledge or reason to know that the right does not exist.” 
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COUNT I -- FCRA 

82. Meyer incorporates by reference as if fully set forth herein the allegations 

contained in the preceding paragraphs of this Complaint. 

83. Count I is brought against all defendants. 

84. Plaintiffs incorporate the above-numbered paragraphs by reference. 

85. Midland obtained a consumer report on plaintiffs and every other person to whom 

the form letters represented by Exhibit B was sent without her written permission or a 

“permissible purpose.” 

86. Midland, however, never actually took assignment of Meyer’s account. 

87. Midland had no legal basis to obtain a consumer report about Meyer. 

88. Since, upon information and belief, Midland never took assignment of Meyer’s 

Synchrony account, it had no permissible purpose to access Meyer’s consumer reports. 

89. The sending of the material in Exhibit B does not constitute a permissible reason 

for anyone to access a consumer report on Meyer without Meyer’s consent 

90. Defendants’ accessing of Meyer’s consumer report violated 15 U.S.C. § 

1681b(c)(1)(B). 

91. Defendants’ violation was willful. 

92. Defendants are liable to the plaintiffs and class members pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 

1681n. 

COUNT II  – FDCPA 
 

93. Meyer incorporates by reference as if fully set forth herein the allegations 

contained in the preceding paragraphs of this Complaint. 

94. Count II is brought against Defendant MCM. 
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95. MCM represented that it had purchased Meyer’s account when that representation 

was false. 

96. Midland never actually took assignment of Meyer’s account. 

97. Midland had no legal basis collect the account from Meyer, and had no ownership 

interest in the debt. As such, Midland could not sue Meyer to collect the debt. 

98. Since, upon information and belief, Midland never took assignment of Meyer’s 

Synchrony account, its representations that to that effect were false and misleading. 

99. Moreover, Midland’s ambiguous references to the status of the account and 

“recall” are confusing and misleading to the unsophisticated consumer, as they mislead as to the 

true owner of the debt. 

100. MCM violated 15 U.S.C. §§ 1692e, 1692e(10), 1692f and 1692f(1). 

COUNT III -- WCA 

101. Meyer incorporates by reference as if fully set forth herein the allegations 

contained in the preceding paragraphs of this Complaint. 

102. Count III is brought against all defendants. 

103. Exhibit B attempts to collect an account that did not actually exist. 

104. Upon information and belief, Midland reported Plaintiff's alleged debt as being 

owed to Midland to the three major credit reporting agencies (“CRAs”) sometime around August 

27, 2016. 

105. Defendants violated Wis. Stat. §§ 427.104(1)(c) and 427.104(1)(j). 

CLASS ALLEGATIONS 
 

106. Meyer brings this action on behalf of a Class, consisting of (a) all natural persons 

in the State of Wisconsin (b) who were sent a collection letter in the form represented by Exhibit 
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B to the complaint in this action, (c) and were subsequently sent a letter in the form represented 

by Exhibit C to the complaint in this action (d) seeking to collect a debt incurred for personal, 

family or household purposes, (d) between October 27, 2015 and October 27, 2017, inclusive, (e) 

that was not returned by the postal service. 

107. The Class is so numerous that joinder is impracticable.  On information and 

belief, there are more than 50 members of the Class. 

108. There are questions of law and fact common to the members of the class, which 

common questions predominate over any questions that affect only individual class members.  

The predominant common question is whether the Defendant complied with the FCRA, the 

FDCPA, and the WCA. 

109. Meyer’s claims are typical of the claims of the Class members.  All are based on 

the same factual and legal theories. 

110. Meyer will fairly and adequately represent the interests of the Class members. 

Meyer has retained counsel experienced in consumer credit and debt collection abuse cases. 

111. A class action is superior to other alternative methods of adjudicating this dispute.   

Individual cases are not economically feasible. 

JURY DEMAND 

112. Meyer hereby demands a trial by jury. 

PRAYER FOR RELIEF 

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs request that the Court enter judgment in favor of Plaintiffs and 

the Class and against Defendants for: 

(a) actual damages; 

(b) statutory damages;   
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(c) attorneys’ fees, litigation expenses and costs of suit; and 

(d) such other or further relief as the Court deems proper. 

Dated:  October 25, 2017 
  ADEMI & O’REILLY, LLP 
 
  By: /s/ John D. Blythin   
  John D. Blythin (SBN 1046105) 
  Mark A. Eldridge (SBN 1089944) 
  Jesse Fruchter (SBN 1097673) 
  Ben J. Slatky (SBN 1106892) 
  3620 East Layton Avenue 
  Cudahy, WI 53110 
  (414) 482-8000 
  (414) 482-8001 (fax) 
  jblythin@ademilaw.com 
  meldridge@ademilaw.com 
  jfruchter@ademilaw.com 
  bslatky@ademilaw.com 
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Synchrony Bank
P.O. Box 965064

Orlando, FL 32896-5064

SHARON MEYER UPGR
11528 W COLDSPRING RD 110500
GREENFIELD WI 53228-2501 04/30/2016

MIfidli1lalfitill1111111111111110,01pipplpipid

RE: BP
Account Number: 70060*******5544
Account Balance at Time of Sale: $1367.17

rq
1.4

Dear SHARON MEYER, u,

This letter is to inform you that the above-referenced account was sold to Midland Credit Management, Inc.
on 04/19/2016. If you have any questions about this account, please contact:

DSGOODBYEE
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Midland Credit Management, Inc.
P.O. Box 60578
Los Angeles, CA 90060-0578
855-977-1969

rn

Sincerely,

Synchrony Bank



Exhibit B
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§nTaT.:•e' -•tr.tt

c_QW34713 merittet-drtificat

Welcome. Your account has a new home.

Peateeigemacipmeor. Mail Payments To:

rncm MIdland Credit Management, Inc.
P.O. BOX 13105

Mlit.M.I'Mummil ROANOKE. VA 24031-3103
Current Owner: Midland Funding LW

Original Creditor: Synchrony Bank

Original Account Number: 544
Sharon Meyer MCM Account Number: 1.409
11628 W Coldspring Rd Current Balance: 51, 367.1 7
Greenfield, WI 53228-2601

IPPI111111301..1115110iiiiirwIll1111.111-li.1111/4111111

05-27-2016

Dear Sharon,

Weloomel On 04-29-2016, your Synchrony Bank SP account was sold to MIDLAND FUNDING LUC. which is now the

sole owner of this debt. Midland Credit Management, Inc. CMCM"). a debl collection company, will be collecting on,

and servicing your account. an behalf of MIDLAND FUNDING

Your experience with MCM will be different. Period.

What to expect frorn MCM:
Now that we are servicing the account, we have assigned the account an MCM Account Number, 409. MCM

will reach out to you by phone and mail over the months to come. We also have a websile,
yrarw.midlandcreditonlIne,corn, where you cart login using your MCM acoount number to view account details.

MCM, a partner you can trust.
We value your experience and understand Mat managing debt can be a difficult process! That is why we set standards

for how you are to be treated while working with us. Visit www,midlandcreditonline.com to learn about our Consumer

Bill of Roghts or call (666) 361-0420 to experience the Claterence for yourself.

Next Steps... You Choose.

I Enclose $1,367.17 in the envelope provided.
We will send a fetter to you that confirms that you have no further obligation on this account. _1

Ill you need more personal service or have questions, call {866) 361-0420. I
Have a great day arid we look f0rward 10 hearing from Your

Sincerely,

NiCk Sondi
Midland Credit Management, Inc.

P.S. These payment opportunities do riot alter or amend your validation rights as described on the reverse side.

This account may still be reported Oil your credit report as unpaid.

We will not report your debt to the credit bureaus if you set up a payment plan, make a payment by 08-27-2016 and

make all payments as agreed.

We are not obligated to renew this offer.

Bears of 0 perellen: rt.ii, C.:, Mall:
mon Fri: 11.J3earn 7:30pm EST 51:!•'• .1;.:A1. Pay Online at

364-0420 :r_: r; www.midlandcredttonllne.cont t.r, Payment Cenificate

Current Balance: Current Owner. Currant SeMcen

51,367.17 MIDLAND FUNDING Lie Midland Credit Management, Inc.

Call: Purchase Date: Offer Expiration Date:

OW 361-0420 04.29,2013 07-11-2016

PLEASE SEE REVERSE SIDE FOR IMPORTANT DISCLOSURE INFORMATION

MCM Account Number: 1409 Directions:
Original Account Number: 1544
Current Balance; $1,367.17 11 Make your Check payable to Midland Carat Management, Inc

21Pill net the amount enclosed on the Payment Certificate

Due Date: 137-11-2016 31 Place your check and Payment Certificate In the provided envelope
Amount Enclosed: 4) Mail Payment Careficate to

rrirn MIdland Credit Management, Inc.
Sharon Meyer P.O. BOX 13105
11628 W ColdsprIng Rd ROANOKE, VA 24031-3105

Greenfield, WI 53228-2501

V003
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Important Disclosure Information:

Please understand this is a communication from a debt collector. This is an attempt to collect a debt
Any information obtained will be used for that purpose.

PLEASE SEE REVERSE SIDE FOR IMPORTANT DISCLOSURE INFORMATION

Calls to and/or from this company may be monitored or recorded.

The records associated with the Synchrony Bank account purchased by MIDLAND FUNDING LLC, reflect that you are

obligated on this account, which is in default.

As the owner of this account, but subject to the rights described below, MIDLAND FUNDING LLC is entitled to payment of
this account. All communication regarding this account should be addressed to MCM and not the previous owner.

Unless you notify MCM within thirty (30) days after receiving this notice that you dispute the validity of the debt, or any
portion thereof, MCM will assume this debt to be valid.

If you notify MCM, in writing, within thirty (30) days after receiving this notice that the debt, or any portion thereof, is disputed,
MCM will obtain verification of the debt or a copy of a judgment (if there is a judgment) and MCM will mail you a copy of such
verification or judgment.

If an attorney represents you with regard to this debt, please refer this letter to your attorney. Likewise, if you are involved in
an active bankruptcy case, or if this debt has been discharged in a bankruptcy case, please refer this letter to yourbankruptcy attorney so that we may be notified.

Please remember, even if you make a payment within thirty (30) days after receiving this notice, you still have the remainder
of the thirty (30) days to exercise the rights described above.

You are hereby notified that a negative credit report reflecting on your credit record may be submitted to a credit reporting
agency if you fail to fulfill the terms of your credit obligations.
RETAIN THE FOLLOWING ADDRESS INFORMATION FOR YOUR RECORDS:

Communications concerning disputed debts, including an instrument tendered as full satisfaction of a debt, are to
be sent to: 2365 Northside Drive, Suite 300, San Diego, CA 92108; Attn: Consumer Support Services.
MAIL PAYMENTS TO: P.O. Box 60578, Los Angeles, CA 90060-0578
MAIL CORRESPONDENCE BUT NO PAYMENTS TO: 2365 Northside Drive, Suite 300, San Diego, CA 92108
MAIL CREDIT REPORTING CORRESPONDENCE TO: MCM CREDIT REPORTING DEPARTMENT, 2365 Northside Drive,
Suite 300, San Diego, CA 92108

We are required under state law to notify consumers of the following rights. This list does not contain a complete
list of the rights consumers have under state and federal law:

IF YOU LIVE IN COLORADO, THIS APPLIES TO YOU:
FOR INFORMATION ABOUT THE COLORADO FAIR DEBT COLLECTION PRACTICES ACT, SEE WWW.COAG.GOVICAH

A consumer has the right to request in writing that a debt collector or collection agency cease further communication with the
consumer. A written request to cease communication will not prohibit the debt collector or collection agency from taking any
other action authorized by law to collect the debL

Midland Credit Management has a Colorado office with the following address and telephone number: Building B, 80 Garden
Center, Suite 3, Broomfield, CO 80020. Telephone number: (303) 920-4763.

Only physical in-person payments may be accepted at this office location. All payments made via mail should be
sent to the following address: P.O. Box 60578, Los Angeles, CA 90060-0578

IF YOU LIVE IN MASSACHUSETTS, THIS APPLIES TO YOU:
NOTICE OF IMPORTANT RIGHTS: You have the right to make a written or oral request that telephone calls regarding your
debt not be made to you at your place of employment. Any such oral request will be valid for only ten (10) days unless you
provide written confirmation of the request postmarked or delivered within seven (7) days of such request. You may terminate
this request by writing to Midland Credit Management, Inc.

IF YOU LIVE IN MINNESOTA, THIS APPLIES TO YOU:
This collection agency is licensed by the Minnesota Dept. of Commerce.

IF YOU LIVE IN NEW YORK CITY, THIS APPLIES TO YOU:
New York City Department of Consumer Affairs License Number 1140603, 1207829, 1207820, 1227728, 2022587, 2023151,
2023152, 2027429, 2027430, 2027431

IF YOU LIVE IN NORTH CAROLINA, THIS APPLIES TO YOU:
North Carolina Department of Insurance Permit #101659, #4182, #4250, #3777, #111895, and #112039. Midland Credit
Management, Inc. 2365 Northside Drive, Suite 300, San Diego, CA 92108.

IF YOU LIVE IN TENNESSEE, THIS APPLIES TO YOU:
This collection agency is licensed by the Collection Service Board of the Department of Commerce and Insurance.

IF YOU LIVE IN CALIFORNIA, THIS APPLIES TO YOU:
The state Rosenthal Fair Debt Collection Practices Act and the federal Fair Debt Collection Practices Act require that, except
under unusual circumstances, collectors may not contact you before 8 a.m, or after 9 p.m. They may not harass you by using
threats of violence or arrest or by using obscene language. Collectors may not use false or misleading statements or call you
at work if they know or have reason to know that you may not receive personal calls at work. For the most part, collectors
may not tell another person, other than your attorney or spouse, about your debt. Collectors may contact another person to
confirm your location or enforce a judgment. For more information about debt collection activities, you may contact the
Federal Trade Commission at 1-877-FTC-HELP or http://www.ftc.qov.

"Nonprofit credit counseling services may be available in the area."

As required by law, you are hereby notified that a negative credit report reflecting on your credit record may be submitted to a

credit-reporting agency if you fail to fulfill the terms of your credit obligations.
IF YOU LIVE IN UTAH, THIS APPLIES TO YOU:
As required by Utah law, you are hereby notified that a negative credit report reflecting on your credit record may be
submitted to a credit reporting agency if you fail to fulfill the terms of your credit obligations.

IF YOU LIVE IN WYOMING, THIS APPLIES TO YOU:
As required by law, you are hereby notified that a negative credit report on your credit record may be submitted to a credit
reporting agency if you fail to fulfill the terms of your credit obligations.
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ncrnMidland Credit

Management, Inc. Phone: (800) 265-8825
Hours of Operation: M Th: 6:00am 7:00pm PST

Fri: 6:00am 4:30pm PST55 Northride Drive, Suite300, Sae Diego, CA9210B
Sat: 6:00am —2:00pm PST
Sun: 5:00am 1:30pm PST

Account Information

Original Creditor:, Synchrony Bank

Original Account No.: 5544
wi .-.101Sharon Meyer MCM Account No.: 1409Pri&,

11528 W Coldspring Rd ^-4 Current Balance: $0.00
Greenfield, WI 532213-2501 Current Owner: MIDLAND FUNDING LLC

IIIIIPT1111.01.11lillIthillilmlirill'IlINIIIIIIII'lli
THIS IS NOT A BILL

10-24-2016

RE: Syncnrony Bank BP

Dear Sharon,

The above-referenced Synchrony Bank account was transferred to MIDLAND FUNDING LLC and
referred to Midland Credit Management, Inc. (MUT) for debt collection. MGM has since been
informed that this account was transferred in error and has been recalled by Synchrony Bank.

We have instructed the three major credit reporting agencies to delete any MCM entry regarding
this account from your credit report. You have no financial obligation to MIDLAND FUNDING LLC
or MCM regarding this matter.

If you have any questions regarding when this change will be reflected on your credit report, please
contact the reporting agencies in writing, or by calling!

Equifax/CBI Experian Trans Union

PO Box 740241 PO Box 2002 PO Box 2000

Atlanta, GA 30374-0241 Allen, TX 75013 Chester, PA 19022

(800) 685 1111 (888) 397 3742 (800) 916 8800

www.equifax.corn www.experian.com/reportaccess www_transunion. COM

Please feel free to contact us at (800) 265-8825, Ext. 32980 should you have any questions.
Consumer Support Services Hours of Operation are Monday Friday 5:00am 4:30pm PST.

Sincerely

Tim Bolin, Division Manager
(800) 265-8825, Ext. 32980

0.1015000M16
0000 0000

PLEASE SEE REVERSE SIDE FOR IMPORTANT DISCLOSURE INFORMATION QCSE
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Important Disclosure Information:

This communication is from a debt collector, this is not an attempt to collect a debt.

PLEASE SEE REVERSE SIDE FOR IMPORTANT DISCLOSURE INFORMATION

Calls to and/or from this company may be monitored or recorded.

MAIL CORRESPONDENCE BUT NO PAYMENTS TO: 2365 Northside Drive, Suite 300, San Diego, CA 92108

We are required under state law to notify consumers of the following rights. This list does not contain a

complete list of the rights consumers have under state and federal law:

IF YOU LIVE IN COLORADO, THIS APPLIES TO YOU:
FOR INFORMATION ABOUT THE COLORADO FAIR DEBT COLLECTION PRACTICES ACT, SEE
WWW.COAG.GOV/CAR

A consumer has the right to request in writing that a debt collector or collection agency cease further communication with
the consumer. A written request to cease communication will not prohibit the debt collector or collection agency from

taking any other action authorized by law to collect the debt.

Midland Credit Management has a Colorado office with the following address and telephone number: Building B, 80
Garden Center, Suite 3, Broomfield, CO 80020. Telephone number: (303) 920-4763.

Only physical in-person payments may be accepted at this office location. All payments made via mail should be
sent to the following address: P.O. Box 60578, Los Angeles, CA 90060-0578

IF YOU LIVE IN MASSACHUSETTS, THIS APPLIES TO YOU:
NOTICE OF IMPORTANT RIGHTS: You have the right to make a written or oral request that telephone calls regarding
your debt not be made to you at your place of employment. Any such oral request will be valid for only ten (10) days
unless you provide written confirmation of the request postmarked or delivered within seven (7) days of such request.
You may terminate this request by writing to Midland Credit Management, Inc.

IF YOU LIVE IN MINNESOTA, THIS APPLIES TO YOU:
This collection agency is licensed by the Minnesota Dept. of Commerce.

IF YOU LIVE IN NEW YORK CITY, THIS APPLIES TO YOU:
New York City Department of Consumer Affairs License Number 1140603, 1207829, 1207820, 1227728, 2022587,
2023151, 2023152, 2027429, 2027430, 2027431

IF YOU LIVE IN NORTH CAROLINA, THIS APPLIES TO YOU:
North Carolina Department of Insurance Permit #101659, #4182, #4250, #3777, #111895, and #112039. Midland Credit

Management, Inc. 2365 Northside Drive, Suite 300, San Diego, CA 92108.

IF YOU LIVE IN TENNESSEE, THIS APPLIES TO YOU:
This collection agency is licensed by the Collection Service Board of the Department of Commerce and Insurance.

IF YOU LIVE IN CALIFORNIA, THIS APPLIES TO YOU:
The state Rosenthal Fair Debt Collection Practices Act and the federal Fair Debt Collection Practices Act require that,
except under unusual circumstances, collectors may not contact you before 8 a.m. or after 9 p.m. They may not harass

you by using threats of violence or arrest or by using obscene language. Collectors may not use false or misleading
statements or call you at work if they know or have reason to know that you may not receive personal calls at work. For
the most part, collectors may not tell another person, other than your attorney or spouse, about your debt. Collectors

may contact another person to confirm your location or enforce a judgment. For more information about debt collection

activities, you may contact the Federal Trade Commission at 1-877-FTC-HELP or http://www.ftc.gov.

"Nonprofit credit counseling services may be available in the area.
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AO 440 (Rev. 06/12) Summons in a Civil Action 

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
for the 

Eastern District of Wisconsin 

) 

) 

) 

) 
Plaintiff(s) ) 

v. ) Civil Action No. 

) 

) 

) 

) 
Defendant(s) ) 

SUMMONS IN A CIVIL ACTION 

To: (Defendant’s name and address) 

A lawsuit has been filed against you. 

Within 21 days after service of this summons on you (not counting the day you receive it) – or 60 days if you are 

the United States or a United States agency, or an officer or employee of the United States described in Fed. R. Civ. P. 

12(a)(2) or (3) – you must serve on the plaintiff an answer to the attached complaint or a motion under Rule 12 of the 

Federal Rules of Civil Procedure.  The answer or motion must be served on the plaintiff or the plaintiff’s attorney, whose 

name and address are: 

If you fail to respond, judgment by default will be entered against you for the relief demanded in the complaint.  

You also must file your answer or motion with the court. 

STEPHEN C. DRIES, CLERK OF COURT 

Date: 
Signature of Clerk or Deputy Clerk 

Case 2:17-cv-01466   Filed 10/25/17   Page 1 of 2   Document 1-5

SHARON MEYER, Individually and on Behalf of All 
Others Similarly Situated

17-cv-1466

MIDLAND CREDIT MANAGEMENT, INC. and 
MIDLAND FUNDING, LLC,

MIDLAND CREDIT MANAGEMENT, INC. 
c/o  Corporation Service Company, Suite 400 
Madison, Wisconsin 53717

John D. Blythin 
Ademi & O'Reilly, LLP 
3620 East Layton Avenue 
Cudahy, WI 53110



AO 440 (Rev. 06/12) Summons in a Civil Action (Page 2) 

Civil Action No.  

PROOF OF SERVICE 

(This section should not be filed with the court unless required by Fed. R. Civ. P. 4(l)) 
 

 This summons and the attached complaint for (name of individual and title, if any): 

 
 

were received by me on (date)  . 
 

☐  I personally served the summons and the attached complaint on the individual at (place): 

 
 

 on (date)  ; or 
 

☐  I left the summons and the attached complaint at the individual’s residence or usual place of abode with (name) 

 

 , a person of suitable age and discretion who resides there,  
 

on (date)  , and mailed a copy to the individual’s last known address; or 
 

☐  I served the summons and the attached complaint on (name of individual)  
 

who is designated by law to accept service of process on behalf of (name of organization)  
 

 on (date)  ; or 
 

☐  I returned the summons unexecuted because  ; or 
 

☐  Other (specify):  
 

 . 
 

My fees are $  for travel and $  for services, for a total of $  
 

 I declare under penalty of perjury that this information is true. 

 

 

Date:      

   Server’s signature 

    

 

   Printed name and title 

    

 

 

 

   Server’s address 

 

Additional information regarding attempted service, etc.: 
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17-cv-1466

0.00

Print Save As... Reset



AO 440 (Rev. 06/12) Summons in a Civil Action 

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
for the 

Eastern District of Wisconsin 

) 

) 

) 

) 
Plaintiff(s) ) 

v. ) Civil Action No. 

) 

) 

) 

) 
Defendant(s) ) 

SUMMONS IN A CIVIL ACTION 

To: (Defendant’s name and address) 

A lawsuit has been filed against you. 

Within 21 days after service of this summons on you (not counting the day you receive it) – or 60 days if you are 

the United States or a United States agency, or an officer or employee of the United States described in Fed. R. Civ. P. 

12(a)(2) or (3) – you must serve on the plaintiff an answer to the attached complaint or a motion under Rule 12 of the 

Federal Rules of Civil Procedure.  The answer or motion must be served on the plaintiff or the plaintiff’s attorney, whose 

name and address are: 

If you fail to respond, judgment by default will be entered against you for the relief demanded in the complaint.  

You also must file your answer or motion with the court. 

STEPHEN C. DRIES, CLERK OF COURT 

Date: 
Signature of Clerk or Deputy Clerk 
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MIDLAND FUNDING, LLC,

MIDLAND FUNDING, LLC 
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John D. Blythin 
Ademi & O'Reilly, LLP 
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PROOF OF SERVICE 

(This section should not be filed with the court unless required by Fed. R. Civ. P. 4(l)) 
 

 This summons and the attached complaint for (name of individual and title, if any): 

 
 

were received by me on (date)  . 
 

☐  I personally served the summons and the attached complaint on the individual at (place): 

 
 

 on (date)  ; or 
 

☐  I left the summons and the attached complaint at the individual’s residence or usual place of abode with (name) 

 

 , a person of suitable age and discretion who resides there,  
 

on (date)  , and mailed a copy to the individual’s last known address; or 
 

☐  I served the summons and the attached complaint on (name of individual)  
 

who is designated by law to accept service of process on behalf of (name of organization)  
 

 on (date)  ; or 
 

☐  I returned the summons unexecuted because  ; or 
 

☐  Other (specify):  
 

 . 
 

My fees are $  for travel and $  for services, for a total of $  
 

 I declare under penalty of perjury that this information is true. 

 

 

Date:      

   Server’s signature 

    

 

   Printed name and title 

    

 

 

 

   Server’s address 

 

Additional information regarding attempted service, etc.: 
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